Public Document Pack southend-on-sea Borough Council

Licensing Sub-Committee A

Date: Friday, 26th February, 2016 Time: 10.00 am Place: Committee Room 1 - Civic Suite Contact: Tim Row - Principal Committee Officer

Email: committeesection@southend.gov.uk

<u>A G E N D A</u>

- 1 Apologies for Absence
- 2 Declarations of Interest
- **3** Application for the Grant of Personal Licence (Pages 1 4)

Report of Corporate Director for Place

PLEASE NOTE: Members of the Sub Committee should assemble in the Member's Lounge 15 minutes before the hearing commences. The Clerk to the Sub Committee will inform you when all the parties to the hearing are ready to proceed.

TO: The Chairman & Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee A: Councillor McMahon (Chair) Councillors Mulroney (Vice-Chair) and Kenyon This page is intentionally left blank

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Report of Corporate Director for Place

to

Licensing Sub-Committee (A)

on

26th February 2016

Report prepared by: Adam Penn

Application for the Grant of Personal Licence

LICENSING ACT 2003

A Part I Public Agenda Item

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 This report considers an application, for the grant of a Personal Licence.

2. Recommendation

- 2.1 That the Sub-Committee determines the application.
- 2.2 Appendix 1 contains the relevant extract from The Governments Guidance to Local Authorities.

3 Background

- 3.1 Any qualifying person can apply to the Licensing Authority (for the area in which they normally reside) for a Personal Licence which gives them the authority to sell or supply alcohol in accordance with a Premises Licence.
- 3.2 It is not a requirement for specific premises, that the Personal Licence holder is the same as the Premises Licence holder
- 3.3 A qualifying person is anyone living in England or Wales who is over 18 and has passed the 'Award for Personal Licence Holders' level II. Providers of courses for this qualification must be certified as approved by The Home Office.

4 Proposals

4.1 The application was given to the Licensing Authority on 5th January 2016 and is for the grant of a Personal Licence.

Agenda Item No. 4.2 Validation of the application was delayed due to queries in regard to the standing of the person certifying the photographs of the applicant. Therefore the application was not forwarded to the police until 27th January 2016.

5 Application Procedures

- 5.1 Applicants for grant of a personal licence are required by law to provide the Licensing Authority with a Criminal Record Bureau check which is less than one month old. Where that check shows one or more 'Relevant Offence' as designated by the Act, the Licensing Authority is required to pass a copy of the application to the Chief Officer of Police.
- 5.2 As a result of that procedure a representation was received from the Police on 28th January 2016.
- 5.3 A copy of the representation has been provided to the Sub-Committee Members. In accordance with the legislation, all parties have been invited to attend the hearing.

6 Matters for Consideration

6.1 Formal objection having been made and not withdrawn or resolved, the Licensing Authority is obliged to hold a hearing to consider it. Further, having regard to such representation, the Authority is required to take steps (if any) as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the Licensing Objective of the prevention of crime and disorder.

Thus, the Authority may:

- a) Grant the licence,
- b) Refuse the application.
- 6.2 In carrying out its licensing functions, the Licensing Authority must also have regard to:
 - 1. Its Licensing Statement, and
 - 2. The guidance issued by the Secretary of State.
- 6.3 Copies of these documents have been made available to all Licensing Committee Members.

7 Background Papers

7.1 Council's Statement of Licensing Policy.

8. Appendices

8.1 Appendix 1 - Extract of the Governments Guidance to Local Authorities

EXTRACT FROM THE GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES

(note: numbers from this point forward refer to sections of 'the guidance')

Criminal record

4.7 Regulations made under the 2003 Act require that, in order to substantiate whether or not an applicant has a conviction for an unspent relevant offence, an applicant for the grant or renewal of a personal licence must include a criminal conviction certificate, a criminal record certificate or the results of a subject access search of the Police National Computer by the National Identification Service to the licensing authority.

4.8 The requirement for an individual to establish whether or not they have unspent convictions for a relevant offence or foreign offence applies whether or not the individual has been living for a length of time in a foreign jurisdiction. It does not follow that such individuals will not have recorded offences in this country. All applicants are also required to make a clear statement as to whether or not they have been convicted outside England and Wales of a relevant offence or an equivalent foreign offence. This applies both to applicants ordinarily resident in England and Wales and any person from a foreign jurisdiction. Details of relevant offences as set out in the 2003 Act should be appended to application forms for the information of applicants, together with a clear warning that making any false statement is a criminal offence liable to prosecution.

4.9 Licensing authorities are required to notify the police when an applicant is found to have an unspent conviction for a relevant offence defined in the 2003 Act or for a foreign offence. The police have no involvement or locus in such applications until notified by the licensing authority.

4.10 Where an applicant has an unspent conviction for a relevant or foreign offence, and the police object to the application on crime prevention grounds, the applicant is entitled to a hearing before the licensing authority. If the police do not issue an objection notice and the application otherwise meets the requirements of the 2003 Act, the licensing authority must grant it.

4.11 A number of relevant offences never become spent. However, where an applicant is able to demonstrate that the offence in question took place so long ago and that the applicant no longer has a propensity to re-offend, a licensing authority may consider that it is appropriate to grant the application on the basis that doing so would not undermine the crime prevention objective.

4.12 If an application is refused, the applicant will be entitled to appeal against the decision they make. Similarly, if the application is granted despite a police objection notice, the chief officer of police is entitled to appeal against the licensing authority's determination. Licensing authorities are therefore expected to record in full the reasons for any decision that they make.

This page is intentionally left blank